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_ Certifed Public Accountants 

INDEPENDEI'wTT ALTDIT+(~RS' REI'fJRT  

Board of Directors of San Miguel Community Services District 
San Miguel, California 

{)pinions 

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the gover~linental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund 
of the San Miguel Community Services District, as of and. for the fiscal year ended June 30, 204, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the San Miguel Community Services District's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund of the San Miguel Community Services District, as of June 30, 
204, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended ïn 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 

Basis for tJpinions 

we conducted our audit ïn accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained ïn GovernmentAuditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's I~esponsïbilitïes for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the San Miguel Community Services District and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, ïn accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. we believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained ïs sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management fc~r the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerïca, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, 

In_ preparing the financlai statements, rnanageiiient is rec~üired to G;%aivate wilt l~il there are conditions or everts, considered ïn the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the San Miguel Community Services District's ability to continue as a going concern for 
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt 
shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore ïs not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when ït exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud ïs higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material ïfthere ïs 
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the San Miguel Community 
Services District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

~ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

~ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about the San Miguel Community Services District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

we are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the major special revenue funds' budgetary 
comparison information, the schedule of changes in OPEB liability and related ratios, the schedule of OPEB contributions, the 
schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability;  and the schedule of pension contributions be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. we have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries of the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance an the 
information because the limited procedures do  nat  provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted ïn the United States 
ofAmerica require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part ofthe 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements ïn an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

t}ther Reporting required by ~avernment Auditing .,Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6, X024, on our consideration of 
the San Miguel Community Services District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests ofits compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testii3g, and not to provide an opïnioil 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report ïs an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance, 

~Ifa~a, ~ ~ J~%x, .c,cP 

Santa Maria, California 
December 6, 2024 
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As stewards to the San Miguel community services District's Financial management, we offer readers of the 
District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the 
fiscal year ended on June Q, g24. C3ur District's primary objective is to efficiently serve the community with Fire 
protection, Water, Wastewater, Street Lighting►~Landscaping and Solid Waste services in San iiguel. This section 
of the District's financial report is provided as supplementary information to the audited financial statements. It is 
management's intention that this information provides the f nancïal statement reader with a brief and concise 
overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year that ended June 3g, ~Q~4. 

The District's basic statements report "Governmental Activities" of the Fire Fund and the street Lighting Fund 
and the "Business-Type Activities" or "Proprietary Funds" of the Water Fund and Wastewater Fund which 
includes the solid Waste Fund}. 

Governmental Activities —these programs are primarily supported by property taxes, and by specific program 
revenues such as Ambulance fees, Plan check fees, Public Facilities fees, and Developer fees. 

Business-type Activities —these programs are primarily supported by service fees, Grants, Hookup fees, 
Franchise fees, and Developer fees. 

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure 
and den ~onstrate  cor  ripliance with finance-related legal reguire!~nents. 

Governmental Funds —are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the Government-wide Financial statements. However, unlike the Government-wide Financial 
statements, Governmental Fund Financial Statements focus on near-term inflows and autflows of spendable 
resources, as well as the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Proprietary Funds —are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide f nancial statements. The District uses a proprietary fund, an enterprise fund, to account for 
the wastewater and vVater. 

The District presents it's financial statements under the reporting model required by the GASB statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial statements —and Management's Discussion and Analysis {MD&A~ —for state and Local 
Governments. For comparison purposes, two years of financial information is provided in the GASB 34 format. 

REQUIRED FINANCIAL sTATEMENTs 

The District's annual report consists of: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements, and dotes 
to the Financial statements. 
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The basic financial statements following this discussion are: Statement of Net Position, statement of Activities and 
changes in Net Position, and statement of cash Flows. These consist of the Government-wide Financial 
statements and the Fund Financial statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different views 
of the District's financial activities and financial position. Government-wide Financial statements provide a broad 
overview of the District's activities as a whole, in a manner similar to aprivate-sector business, and consist of the 
statement of Net Position and the statement of Activities. The Statement of Net Position provides information about 
the financial posïtion of the District as a whole, including all it's capital assets and long-term liabilïties on the full 
accrual basis, similar to that used by corporations. The statement of Activities provides information about all of the 
District's revenues and all of its expenses, also on a full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measurïng net revenues 
or expenses of each of the District's funds. The statement of Activities explaïns ïn detail the change in Net Position 
fore the fiscal year. 

The basic financial statements include Fund Financial statements that consist of Balance sheets, Statement of 
Revenues Expenditures and changes in Fund Balance, statement of Net Position, statement of revenues, 
Expenses, and changes in Net Position, and the statement of cash Flows. Following the Fund Financial 
statements are dotes to the Financial Statements that provide accounting methodology and other disclosures 
related to specifically identified financial statement reporting. 

Notes o the Financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the Government-wide and Fund Fïnancial statements. 

Required supplementary Information regarding the major funds' budgets and the pension and CJPTB plan 
information can be found on pages 39-44 of the Audit Financial Statements. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis- The District presents its financial statements under the reporting model 
required by the GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —and Management's Discussion and Analysis 
~MD8~A) —for State and Local Governments. For comparison purposes, two years of financial information is 
provided in the GASB 34 format. 

FINANCiAL HIGNLIGNTS 

- The District's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $12,747,939. This represents the net position of the District as 
of June 30, 2024. 

- The District's net position increased by X1,354,038. 
- Total revenues for the fiscal year were $3,901,598 an increase of $574,033 or 15.9%~ over the prior fiscal 

year. 
- Total operating expenses for the fiscal year were X2,607,558 an increase of X95,103 or 3.79°l0 over the prior 

fiscal year. consistent with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, operating expenses do not 
include debt principal payments or capital asset purchases. 

- The District made prïncipal payments on long-term debts in the amount of X128,725 during the fiscal year. 
- In addition to the operating expenses, the Dïstrict incurred $1,425,350 in capital asset purchases during the 

current fiscal year. 
- cash and Cash Equivalents on June 30, 2024 totaled $0,050,380. 
- Cash and cash Equivalents increased by $248,827 during the fiscal year.. 
- During the prior fiscal year {2022/23} Cash and Cash Equivalents increased by $547,129. 
- The District's Governmental Fund Balances increased X71,881 or 3.5°l© from the previous year. 
- salary and Wages decreased by 3.35°l0 or $24,804... 
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Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's fïnancial position. In the case of our district, 
the assets and deferred inflows exceeded the liabilities and deferred outflows by X12,747,939 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year, 

.- ~ •~ ~ 
~ ~ a j  ~ ~ 

Governmental and Business-Type 
Activities 

2024 2028 

Current and other Assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Total C3eferre~d o~rtflows 

Current and other liabilities 298,484 225,969 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 2,109,095 2,139,121 

Total Liabilities 2,407,579 2,365,090 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 134, 806 145, 274 

Total Deferred l~aflows 134,806 145,274 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 7, 067, 917 5, 852,189 

Restricted 3, 001,173 2, 903, 507 

Unrestricted 2, 678, 849 2, 638, 205 

Total  plet  Position 12, 747, 989 $11, 393, 901 

The largest portion of the District's net position of X7,067,917 X55.4°l0) reflects its net investment in capital assets 
e.g. land, structures and improvements, equipment, and construction in progress, net of accumulated 

depreciation); less any related debt and other payables used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The 
District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay..  this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Another significant portion of the District's net position of X3,001,173 (23.5°l°} represents restricted resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, 
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At the end of the fiscal year the District is able to report positive balances in all of the categories of net position. 
The Distrïct's net position increased by $1,354,038 during the 2023-2024 fiscal year, which accounts far 11.9 
percent of total net position. 

Governmental Activities 

2024 2023 

Busïness-Type Activities 

2024 2023  

Tota l 

2024 2023  

REVENUES: 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for Servïces $34,634 $17,053 $2,373,861 $2,281,254 $2,408,495 $2,298,307 

operatïng grants and contributions 30,102 146 0 0 30,102 146 

Capital grants and contributions 0 0 557,885 104,543 557,885 104,543 

General revenues: 

Property Taxes 

Invest earnings {loss} 

Gain on the sale of property 

Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

TaTAL REVENUES 

EXPENSES: 

Governmental activities; 

Public Safety 

Street l~ght~ng 

Depreciation {unallocated} 

Business-type actïvities: 

Water 

Wastewater 

TC)TA~ EXPENSES 

693,858 634,012 118,926 124,701 812,784 758,713 

31,729 {993) 53,844 10,451 85,573 9,458 

5,625 27,600 16 107,643 S,ó41 135,243 

7,599 25,100 53,517 56,053 ó1,11ó 81,153 

0 79,691 0 {79,691} 0 0 

803,547 782,609 3,158,049 2,604,954 3,9ó1,596 3,387,563 

583,689 572,901 583,ó89 572,901 

56,502 64,312 56,502 ó4,312 

66,776 83,978 ó6,776 83,978 

1,13ó,449 1,014, 349 1,136,449 1,014, 349 

764,142 776,915 764,142 776,915 

70ó,967 721,191 1,900,591 1,791,264 2,607,558 2,512,455 

CHANGE IN NET PaSITlaN 96,580 61,418 1,257,458 813,ó9a 1,354,038 875,108 

Net positïon at begïnning of year 2,081,771 2,020,353 9,312,130 8,498,440 11,393,901 10,518,793 

NET PC3sIT1aN AT END C}F YEAR $2,178,351 $2,081,771 $10,569,588 $9,312,130 $12,747,939 $11,393,901. 

REVENUES 

The District's total revenues per the Statement of Activities were $3,961,595 far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 
which represents an increase of $574,033 or 15.9°lo from the prior fiscal year. charges far Services revenue of 
$2,405,495 comprised 51 °lo of total revenues. Property tax revenue of $812,754 comprised 21 °lo of total revenues 
of the District, that is restricted far specific fund use. The increase in Property tax revenue reflects the increase in 
Praposïtion 13 adjustments on existing homes combined with the increase of sales on existing and new home 
properties and local development. The increase in Governmental Activity operatïng contributions reflects the new 
grants that the Fire Department was awarded. The increase in Business-Type Activity operating contributions 



reflects the grants that where awarded. The ïncrease in Governmental Activities charges for Services reflects the 
cost Recovery program that the Fire Department implemented during the fiscal year. The increase in Susiness-
Type Activities revenue reflects the District manager's banl~ing and investment changes in our financial strategies. 

Expenses of the District totaled 2,67,58 for the fiscal year ended June 36, 2624 which represents a increase of 
X95,163 or 3.79°lo from the prior year. Water Service casts represents the largest expenditure of A~4°lo, Wastewater 
Service costs 29°l0, Public Safety costs 22°l0 of total expenses. 

The following table shows the cost of each of the District's programs and the net cost of the programs for the fiscal 
year ended June 36, 2624. Net  costs is the total cost less fees and other direct revenue generated by the activities. 
The net cost of the Public Safety, Street Lightïng, `VV`ater and WastewateriSolid Waste reflects the financial burden 
that was placed on the District's taxpayers and Service Customers by each of the programs to maintain service to 
the District's customers. 

PRf,~GRAM CC7STS AND NET REVENUE COST) 

Net Revenue 
Total Cost of Cost) of 

Services Services 

EXPENSES, 

Governmental activities: 

PUbIIC Safety $583,689 {$518,976} 

Street lighting 56,562 X56,479} 

Depreciation {Unallocated) 66,776 X66,776} 

~ í~~..$si Hess-type activities: ~ 

Water 1,136,449 65,873 

Wastewater 764,142 965,282 

TOTAL EXPENSES $2,667,558 X388,924 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS CJF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the District uses Fund Accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the District's operations in more 
detail than the government..-wide financial statements.. 

Governmental Funds: the focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Dstricts' financing 
requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of a government's 
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At June 36, 2624 the District's governmental and enterprise funds reported combined fund balances/net position of 
12,714,934 which represents an increase of X1,329,339 from the prior year. The increase for fiscal year 2624 was 

mostly for capïtal projects and capital lease. Approximately 23.7°lo is the combined fund balances and net position 
in the current fiscal year of $3,617,396 constitutes Unrestricted Net Position, which is used to meet the District's 
current and future needs. The remainer Of the fund balance and net position not park of the net investment in capital 
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assets is Restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has been restricted either for: 1) 

amounts set aside for future construction ($855,827) or 2) to be used for the specific purpose of the Fund 

($2,145,346). 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

As of June 0, 2024, the District's investment in capital assets amounted to X8,409,738 net of depreciation. This 
investment in capital assets includes land, leased land, Land improvements, structures and improvements, 

equipment, and construction in progress costs for various improvements and construction. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

2024 2023 
Business- Business- 

Governmental Type governmental Type 
Activities Activities  Tota  I Activities Activities  Tota  I 

Land $76,926 $3íJ1,889 $378,815 $7'í,92à $301,889 $378,815 
Buildngs, structures, 

and Improvements 549,860 9,045,814 9,595,080 549,806 9,045,814 9,595,680 

Equipment 1,492,146 808,334 2,300,480 1,481,235 808,334 2,289,569 

Construction in progress 47,174 2,420,568 2,467,742 19,129 1,034,174 1,053,303 
Less: accumulated 
depreciation {1,502,999} {4,829,983} {6,332,982} {1,436,223} {4,564,246} {6,000,469} 

TOTAL $663,113 $7,746,622 $8,409,735 $690,933 $6,625,965 $7,316,898 

The change in Capital Asset fatal reflects the removal of surplus equipment sold, new equipment additions, the 
modular District Office, and asset deprecïation. Additional information an the District's capital assets can be found 
in Dote 3 an page 30 Of the Audited Financial Statements. 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

At June 30, 2824 the District had long-term liabilities totaling $~,~~~ ,328. District long-term liabilities include 

$304,802 of pension liability with respect to the obligation of the District for CaIPERS retirement, and X348,929 for 
Other Post-Employment Benefits {+C~PEB} liabilities. Bonds payable of ~1,002,2~ 2 far the 2008 USDA loan {secured 
by water revenues}, Leases payable of $817,844 for the Fire Engine and the Temporary Housing Unit, and Notes 
payable $48,839 the remainder of the ~ 984 State of California Nate {secured by water revenues. Finally, there was 
a $29,709 liability for employee Compensated Absences. 

Additional information on the District's long-term liabilities can be found in Notes 4-9 on pages 31-38 of the Audited 
Financial Statements. 
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The San Miguel c.s.D. local economy continues to see growth as the population continues to grow and with it the 
demand for housing occurs. The primary sources of funding for the District's Funds are charge for Service and 
Property Taxes. The District is currently in a Rate Study for vVater Service. charges for service revenue can only 
be used to provide that specific service. Property tax revenues have increased by approximately $54,Q71 or 7.12°.Ío 

from the prior year but projections and property values continue to go up, therefore the District is projecting nn 
average annual growth in property tax revenues of 4% for the next fiscal year, Property Taxes may only be used 
bythe Fund they are collected for. 

One concern far the future fiscal years is the potential impact of cost inflation. vVhile the Fiscal Year 2C~23~24 Budget 
{adopted by the Board of Directors on May 23, 2tJ24~ and the District's utility rate structure includes some allowance 
for cost inflation, there have been significant recent increases in inflation metrics such as the consumer price index. 
For example Electric costs for the Treatment Plant increased 49.990 0, Well electric costs increased 29.1 ~%, 
Insurance costs increased 7.08% with the The District has also experienced wide fluctuations in the cost of fuel and 
utilities. The District's Budget process will start at the beginning of the calendar year and will again need to consider 
these added costs and projected inflation increases. 

The District's overall goal is to maintain the high levels of service and reliability that our residents and business 
leaders have come to expect from the District. One step in meeting this challenge is the annual review and update 
of the District's Goals, capital Improvement Projects, and strategic Plan. These capital Improvement Plans provide 
an overview of the timing of future District facilities and projects, and corresponding revenue sources for 
development. This document, along with the annual Budget, is the foundation upon which the District will build to 
meet the growing needs of the community. 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

This Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with 
a general overview of the District's Finances. If you have +questions about this report or need additional  financin[  
information, contact the San Miguel community Services District at 1785 Bonita Plnce, PO Box 189, San Miguel, 
cA 93451 or visit the District's web page at .san  i  uelcsd.or 
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SAN  MIGUEL  Ct~MMU1VITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
STATEMENT ~JF NET PC~SITIí~N 
June 3íi, 2íJ24 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Cash in escrow 

Accounts receivable, net 

Interest receivable 
Deposits 
Capital assets: 

Nan Depreciable: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Depreciable: 

Buildings, structures, and improvements 

Equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLC~V1/S t1F RESC)URCES 

Deferred pensions 
Deferred tJPEB 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABI L1T1 ES 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liabilities 

Accrued interest payable 
Deposits 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within ane year  

Que  in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED 1NFLt~11~/S tJF RESí'JURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Deferred ~PEB  

Tota!  deferred inflows of resources 

NET POS1T1{~N 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 
Fire and emergency services 

Street lighting 

Capita! expansion 

Capita! project 

Debt service 

Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

1,917,81 ~ $ 4,132,567 $ 6,050,386 

119,222 119,222 

32, 798 229, 384 262,182 

7,913 7,913 

107,055 107,055 

76, 926 301, 889 378, 815 

47,174 2,420,568 2,467,742 

549,8àó 9,045,814 9,595,680 

1,49Z,14ó 808,334 2,300,480 

{ 1, 502, 999 {4, 829, 983} (6, 332, 982) 

2,847,920 12,108,573 14,956,493 

52, 301 182, 568 234, 869 

19, 792 79,17íJ 98, 962 

72, 093 2ó 1, 738 333, 831 

33, 341 54, 973 88, 314 

6,1 Z0 12, 271 18, 391 

10,559 18,624 29,183 

20,365 2ía3ó5 

64,049 78,182 142,231 

595, 303 1, 513, 192 2,109,íJ95 

709,372 1,698,207 2,407,579 

9,459 11,196 Z0,ó55 

22,831 91,320 114,151 

32,290 1íJ2,51ó 134,8íJó 

371,546 6,ó9ó,371 7,Oó7,917 

978,115 978,115 

94íJ, 954 940, 954 

481,236 481,236 

226,277 322,844 549,121 

51, 747 51, 747 

(338,541 ~ 3,017,390 Z,ó78,849 
$ 2,178,351 $ 10,569,588 $ 12,747,939 

The Hates to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SAN MIGUE~ COM~UN~TY SERVICES DISTRICT' 
STATEMENT t~F ACTIVITIES 
For the 1=seal Year Ended June 3C1, X04 

Program Revenues 
operating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

Governmental activities: 

Public safety $ 583,589 ~ 34,611 $ 30,102 - 

Street lighting 56,502 23 

Depreciation {unallocated) 66,776 

Total governmental activities 706,967 34,634 30,102 

E3LiSlnesS-t}1pe activitleS: 

Water 1,136,449 989, 981 212,341 

Wastewater 764,142 1,383,880 345,544 

Total business-type activities 1,900,591 2,373,861 557,885 

Total primary government 2,607,558 2,408,495 $ 30,102 ~ 557,885 

(Continued) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  CC}MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
STATEMENT {~F ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
For the i=iscaf Year Ended June 3~, 224 

inlet Expense} Revenue and Changes in filet Position 

Governmental activities; 

Public safety 
Street lighting 

Deprecïation (unallocated) 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 

Water 
Wastewater 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property 

Investment income 

Gain on the sale of property 

Other general revenues 

Total general revenues 

Change ïn net position 

Net posïtion - beginning of fiscal year 

Net posïtion -end of fiscal year 

Governmen#al Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ {518, 975) $ - $ (51 976} 
/

8
~

, 

(55,479) (56,479) 

(55, 775) (66, 776) 

(542,231) (642,231) 

55, 873 65, 873 

965,282 965,282 

1,031,155 1,031,155 

(542, 231 } 1, 031,155 388, 924 

693, 858 118, 926 812, 784 

31, 729 53, 844 85, 573 

5,625 15 5,541 

7, 599 53, 517 61,1 ~( 6 

738, 811 225, 303 965,114 

95,580 1,257,455 1,354,fl38 

2,x81, 771 9, 312,130 11, 393, 901 

$ 2,178, 351 $ 1 fl, 569, 588 $ 12, 747, 939 

~~~ •-• 
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SAN MI~UE~ G{JMIUiIlNITY SERVICES DISTrICT 
~C)VERNMENTAL F~JNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
June 30, 2024 

Special revenue Funds 
Fire Street Lighting 

1=und Fund Tc~tal~ 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash in escrow 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Deposits 

Total assets 

LlA81LIT1ES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted: 

Fire and emergency services 
Modular building project 
Street lighting 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances  

$ 989,510 $ 928,303 $ 1,017,819 
119,222 119,222 

27,592 5,200 32,798 
7.913 7,913 

~ 1,t43,385 ~ 941,422 ~ 2,184,807 

$ 33, 341 $ - $ 33, 341 
5,052 408 0,120 

38,993 408 39,401 

978,115 978,115 
220,277 220,277 

940, 954 940, 954 

1, 204, 392 940, 954 2,145, 340 

$ 1,243,385 941,422 $ 2,184,807 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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~/~►1V  MIGUEL  CQMMUNITY ERVICE~ DISTRICT 
I~ECONCILIATIt~N ~1F THE G{~VERNMENTAL FUNDS -BALANCE SHEET 
TC7 THE STATEMENT of NET PC3SiTI~N 
June 30, 2024 

$ 2,145, 346 Total fund balances -governmental funds 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported, In the statement of net position, 
all assets are reported, ncludïng capital assets and accumulated depreciation.. 

Capital assets at historical cost $ 2,166,112 

Accumulated depreciation 

~ 

Long-term liabilities; In governmental funds, only current lïabilïties are reported. In the 
statement of net position, all lïabïlitïes, including Long-term liabilities, are reported. 
Long-term lïabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

Compensated absences payable $ 5,475 
Capital lease 517,844 
other post employment benefits oblïgation 89,785 
Net pension liability 65,248 

Total 

In governmental funds, interest on Iong-term liabilities ïs not recognized until the period 
in which ït matures and is paid. In government-wïde statement of net position, it is 
recognized ïn the period that is incurred. 

Deferred outflows and inflor,~~s relating t:; pensions and PEB: In governmental 
funds, deferred outflows and nflows of resources relating to pensions and UPEB 
are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.. In the statement 
of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions 
and C7PEB are reported. 

Deferred inflows of resources relating 
to pensions $ (9,459} 

Deferred inflows of resources relating 
to {JPEB {22,831) 

Deferred outflows of resources relating 
to pensïons 52,301 

Deferred outflows of resources relating 
to OPEB 19,792 

Total net position -governmental activities 

The notes to bask financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

~ 

553,113 

. • 

(10, 559} 

~ * 1 • 

$ 2,17$, 351 



264, 982 

46, 583 

29,414 

25,316 

15,510 

22,188 

2,747 

58, 859 

52,392 

9,200 

39,525 

8,231 

8,216 

?8,787 

38, 956 

•1 •s 

14,975 

3,792 

{15) 

1,526 

2,013 

346 

4 

4,734 

334 

2,138 

57 

1,423 
~4 ~~~ ,~ ,,.,~.., 

{1} 

SAhI M~~GiJEL ~OMMlJNl1'Y SERVICES DiSTR~CT 
Gt3VERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT CAF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fïscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Special Revenue Funds 
Fire Street Lighting 

Revenues: 

Property taxes $ 530,871 

Service charges and fees 17,883 

Public facilities fees and assessments 15,728 

Mutual aïd 27,510 

Grants 2,592 

Investment ïncome 329 

Mïscellaneous ïncome 1,815 

Total revenues 597,728 

Expenditures: 

Salaries and wages 250,007 

Payroll taxes and benefits 42,791 

Vi/orkers compensation 29,429 

Maïntenance and repairs 23,790 

Miscellaneous 15,610 

Insurance 20,175 

Office supplïes and expense 2,401 

Supplies 58,855 

Professional services 47,558 

Dues, permïts, and fees 8,865 

Communicatïons 37,387 

Employee travel and traïning 8,174 

C3ccupancy 8,793 

u~iiltie~ -~, ~ ~-~ 
Bank fees 

Capital outlay 38,956 

Debt Servïce: 

Principal 60,298 

Interest 20,364 

Total expenditures 675,677 

Excess of revenues over {under} expenditures {77,949) 

Other financing sources {uses): 

Proceeds from sale of property 5,625 

Total other fïnancíng sources (uses) 5,625 

Change ïn fund balances {72,324} 

Fund balances -July 1, 2023 1,276,716 

Fund balances -June 30, 2024 $ 1,204,392 

The notes to basïc financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 162,987 $ 593,858 

23 17,906 

16,728 

27,510 

2, 592 

31,400 31,729 

200,194 797, 922 

55,989 731,666 

144,205 66,256 

144,205 

5,625 

5,625 

71,881 

$ 940, 954 $ 2,145, 346 



{3,a4o} 

SAN  MIGUEL  CCJI~VIMUNITY SERVICES i~ISTRICT 
REC+C~NCI~.IATI{~N GF THE STATEMENT' C3F 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES CJF 
G{~VERNMENTAL FUNDS TC~ THE STATEMENT GF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Total net change in fund balances -governmental funds 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expendïtures. However, in the 
statement. of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital 
outlay of $38,956 is less than depreciation expense ~{06,776}. 

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 
earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures for 
these i#ems are measured by the amount of financial resources used {essentially 
the amounts paid}. This fiscal year, vacation used exceeded the amounts earned 
by $2,126. 

In governmental funds, interest in long-term liabilities is recognïzed ïn the period that it 
becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, ït is recognized in the 
period that it is incurred. lJnmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less 
matured interest paid during the perïod but owing from the prior period was: 

In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. 
In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as 
reductions of liabilities. 

In the statement of activities, other postemployment benefits are measured by the amounts earned 
during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are 
measured by the amount of financial resources used {essentially the amounts paid). This 
fiscal year, the difference between accrual-basis postemployment benefit costs 
and actual eiri~3ivyer contribütion5 was: 

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. 
In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This 
fiscal year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 
contributions was: 

Changes in net position -governmental activities 

71,881 

{27,820} 

~~ 

1,294 

.! •. 

{81157} 

The notes to basic financial statements are an ïntegral part of this statement. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNIT`~ SER1/ICES DISTRICT 
PR~PR~ETAR~ EUNDS 
STATEMENT t~F NET PC}SITIC)N 
June ~~, 2~2~ 

wastewater Water 

Fund Fund Totals 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and investments $ 3,104, 246 $ 1, 028, 321 $ 4,132, 567 

Accounts receivable, net 121,565 92,710 214,275 

Interest receivable 12,764 2,345 15,109 

Total current assets 3,238,575 1,123,376 4,361,951 

Noncurrent assets: 

Land 282,660 19,229 301,889 

Construction in progress 2,272,480 148,088 2,420,568 

Depreciable capital. assets, net of accumulated depreciation 933,476 4,090,689 5,024,165 

Total noncurrent assets 3,488,616 4,258,006 7,746,622 

Total assets 6,727,191 5,381,382 12,108,573 

DEFERRED OUTF[~OWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 91,284 91,284 182,568 

Deferred 4PEB 39,585 39,585 79,170 

Total deferred outflows of resources 130,869 130,869 261,738 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 36,865 18,108 54,973 

Accrued liabilities 6,424 5,847 12,271 

Accrued interest payable 18,624 18,624 

Deposits payable 10,344 10,021 20,365 

Compensated absences -current portíon 3,821 3,447 7,268 

Note payable -current portion 48,039 48,039 

Bonds payable -current portion 22,875 22,875 

Total current lïabilities 57,454 126,961 184,415 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 8,913 8,044 16,957 

Note payable 

©PEB payable 139,572 139,572 279,144 

Bonds payable 979,337 979,337 

Net pension liability 119,177 119,177 238,354 

Total noncurrent liabilities 267,662 1,246,130 1,513,792 

Total liabilities 325,116 1,373,091 1,698,207 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 5,598 5,598 11,196 

Deferred UPEB 45,660 45,660 91,320 

Total deferred inflows of resources 51,258 51,258 102,516 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 3,488,616 3,207,755 6,696,371 

Restricted for debt service 51,747 51,747 

Restricted for Wastewater Treatment Facility project 322,844 322,844 

Restricted for capital expansion 412,807 68,429 481,236 

Unrestrïcted 2,257,419 759,971 3,017,390 

Total net position ~ 6,481,686 $ 4,087,902 $ 10,569,588 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SAN M~lJEL CONIMUNiTY SERVICES DISTRICT 
F"R{~PRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT {~F REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES !N NET P~SITIC.}N 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, X024 

Operating Revenues: 

Utility 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses: 

salaries and wages 

Payroll taxes and benefits 

Contract labor 

Workers compensation 

Maintenance and repairs 

Miscellaneous 

insurance 

Office supplies and expense 

Supplies 

Professional services 

Dues, permits, and fees 

Communications 

Employee travel and trainïng 

Occupancy 

Utilities 

Bank fees 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating profit (loss) 

tiün-c~7 per~ting Re~enE~eç  f~xpe!'!sesti: 

Property taxes and assessments 

investment income 

Other non-operating revenue 

Sale of property 

interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses} 

Capital Contributions and Transfers: 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Connection fees 

Total capital contributions and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net positïon - Juiy 1, 2023 

Net posítïon -June 30, 2024 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

19 

Wastewater Water 

Fund Fund Totals 

$ 1, 383, 880 $ 989, 981 $ 2, 373, 861 

1,383,880 989,981 2,373,861 

183,365 268,872 452,237 

80, 064 108, 833 188, 897 

21, 970 17, 271 39,241 

8,662 6,100 14,762 

68,606 134,743 203,349 

92 1,617 1,709 

19,255 32,485 51,740 

3,140 4,143 7, 283 

35,822 43,357 79,179 

89,405 174,643 264,048 

52,114 14,318 66,432 

11,153 10,724 21,877 

1,222 2,180 3,402 

14,574 13,146 27,720 

105,404 63,994 169,398 

{1 } {1) 

69,295 196,442 265,737 

764,142 1, 092, 868 1, 857, 010 

619,738 (102,887) 516,851 

83,926 35,000 118,926 

41,932 11,912 53,844 

46,184 7, 333 53, 517 

16 16 

(43, 581) (43, 581) 

172,042 10,680 182,722 

142,184 142,184 

203, 360 212, 341 415,701 

345, 544 212, 341 557, 885 

1,137, 324 120,134 1, 257,458 

5, 344, 362 3, 967, 768 9, 312,130 

$ 6,481,686 $ 4,087,902 $ 10,569,588 



SAN 11~~CUE~. CCC~~IINIUNITY SERVI+~ES C~ISTRICT 
PR{~PRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT 0► F CASH FLCJVVS 
For tale Fiscai Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Cash Flows From operating Activities: 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activïties 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisitïon of capital assets 

Capital contributions 

Principal païd on capital debt 

Interest païd on capital debt 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows firom Noncapital Financing Activities: 

Property taxes and assessments 

Other revenue 

Sale of property 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 

Interest income 

Net cash provided by ïnvesting actïvities 

Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1, 2023 

Cash and cash equivalents -June 34, 2024 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and investments 

Wastewater Water 

Fund Fund Totals 

$ 1, 384,183 $ 982, 760 $ 2, 362, 943 

{484,118) (611,792) {1,495,914} 

(164,668) {255,296} (415,964} 

735,397 115,672 851,469 

(1,273,927) (112,467) {1,386,394) 

345,544 212,341 557,885 

(68,429} (68,429) 

(44, 326) {44, 326} 

(928,383} (12,881) {941,264} 

83,926 35,440 118,926 

46,184 7,333 53,517 

16 16 

130,110 42,349 172,459 

36,722 11,456 48,178 

36,722 11,456 48,178 

{26,154) 156, 596 130,442 

3,130,400 871,725 4,002,125 

$ 3,144, 246 $ 1, 028, 321 $ 4,132, 567 

{Continued) 

The  nates  to basic financial statements are an integral part of this s#atement. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  CQMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNC~S 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOV1/S {Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 204 

Wastewater Water 

Fund Fund Totals 

Reconciliation of operating income {loss to 

net cash provided by operating activities; 

Operating íncome {loss) $ 619,738 $ (102,887) $ 516,851 

Adjustments to reconci#e operating income (loss) to 

net ,,ash ~,{ ̀JVVded b,, oNerat~ng act;v:tEes 

Depreciation expense 69,295 196,442 265,737 

Change in assets, lablities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and deferred outflows of resources: 

Receivables, net (4,510} (5,617) (10,127} 

Deferred outflows- pension {13,217) (13,217} {26,434} 

Deferred outflows- OPEB (4,367} (4,367) (8,734} 

Accounts payable 27,364 15,762 43,126 

Accrued lablities 1,964 (2,446} {482} 

Deposits 813 {1,604} (791) 

Compensated absences {1,653) (6,364) {8,017) 

OPEB payable 26,244 26,244 52,488 

Net pension liability 17,914 17,914 35,828 

Deferred inflows- pension 1,382 1,382 2,764 

Deferred inflows- OPEB (5,570} (5,570} {11,140) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 735,397 $ 115,672 $ 851,069 

(concluded} 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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SAN MIUEL Ct~MMUNITY S~RVIC~S DISTRACT 
Nt~TES TC} THE BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 34, 2~~4 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY ~► F SiGNlFICANT ACCCIUNTIN~ P'tJLIC1ES 

A. The Financial Deporting Entity 

The San Miguel Community Services District {District) ïs amulti-purpose special dis#riot established on February 1, 
20C~C~, by the consolidation of the San Miguel Fire Protection District, which was established ïn 1941, the Water Works 
District #1, and the San Miguel Lighting District. The San Miguel Sanitation District was dissolved in April 2C~(~1 and 
incorporated into the San Miguel Community Services District. The District is a political subdivision of the State of 
California and operates under a Board of Directors- Manager form of government. The District provides fire 
protection, street lighting, water, wastewater, solid waste, and general administrative services. 

There are no component units included in this report which meet the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board {GASB} Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39,  Na.  61, 
No. 8Q, and No. 99, 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Funr~ Financial Statements: 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing 
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories: governmental and proprietary. An 
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories with each major fund 
displayed in a separate column, 

Nlajc~r Funds 

The District reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

Fire Fund -This fund accounts far activities of the Fire Station. The fire department provides ire suppression, 
emergency paramedic services, and f re prevention including public education. 

Street Lighting Fund —The fund accounts for activities for the maintenance of the street lights in San Miguel. 

The District reports the following major proprietary funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

water Fund -This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the District's water distribution system. The 
water department is responsible for the operation and maintenance of fve groundwater supply wells providing 
treatment, monitoring, and distribution services. 

Wastewater Fund —This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the District's wastewater system. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and expenditures ar expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

tin the government-wide statement of net position and the statemen# of activities, both governmental and business- 
type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item "b" below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic resources" 
measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds are accounted for using a "current financial resources" measurement focus. with this 
measurement focus, only current rise#s and current liabilities generally are included on their balance sheets. 
Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given 
period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of 
the period.. 

b. All proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this 
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes ïn net position {or cost recovery}, 
financial position, and cash flows, All assets and all liabilities {whether current or non-current} associated with 
the operation of these funds are reported, Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 
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SAN  MIGUEL.  CC?MMUNlTY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES T(~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
J lJ N E 3t~, 2~2~ 

N{~TE 1 --SUMMARY C)F SIGNIFICANT ACCC?UNTING PC}LIC~ES {Ca► ntnued} 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting {Continued 

Basis of Accauntin 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both governmental and business-type 
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting Pram exchange and exchange-like transactions 
are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

In the fund f nancial statements, governmental funds are presented an the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and available." 
Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District defines available to be within ~~ days 
of fiscal year-end. Expenditures ~ïncluding capital autlay~ are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except far principal and interest on long term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are 
recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisïtians are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds far governmental long-term debt and acquisitions under 
capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual include taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges far services. 
Certaïn indirect costs are included ïn program expenses reported for individual functions and actïvïties. 

All proprietary funds utïlïze the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Proprietary funds dïstïnguïsh operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. C~peratng revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goads ín connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available 
for use, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Propert r~Taxes 

The County levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments for the Dïstrict. Property taxes levied 
are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of levy, due to the adoption of the "alternate method of property tax 
distrbution," known as the Teeter Plan, by the Dïstrict and the County. The Teeter Plan authorizes the 
AüditariCor~traller of the i..ounty to àiocate 1 úú ro of the secured property taxes billed, exclüdir'g ünïtary tax whether 
paid or unpaid). The County remits tax monies to the District every month and twice a month in December and April. 
The final amount which is "teetered" is remitted in August each year. 

Tax collections are the responsibility of the County Tax Collec#or. Taxes and assessments an secured and utility 
rolls, which constïtute a lien against the property, may be paid ïn two installments; the first is due November 1 of the 
fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by December 1 ~; and the second is due an March 1 of the fiscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constïtute a lien against real property 
unless the tax becomes delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by 
August 31 of the fiscal year. Significant penalties are ïmposed by the County for late payment. 

Property valuations are established by the Assessor of the County for the secured and unsecured property tax rolls. 
Under the provisions of Artïcle ~CIIIA of the State Constitution, properties are assessed at 1 ~~% of purchase price or 
value in 1978 whichever ïs later. From this base assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited to 
a maxïmum of 2 percent. However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon change in 
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

Tax levy dates are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal 
year begïns July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal 
property, as it exists at that time. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are not relieved 
by subsequent renewal ar change in ownership. 
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SAID M1~UE~ CC}MMUI~ITY SERVICES ~}ISTRIT 
NOTES T~ THE BASIC F~NANC~AL STATEMENTS 
J ~ N E 30, ~0~4 

Nt~TE ~ —SUMMARY ~3F S~G~1IFI+CAh1T AC~~I~NTIUG PULlCIES {~ont nued~ 

E. Cash and Investments 

The District pools the cash of all funds, except for monies that are reserved for specific purposes, The cash and 
investments balance in each fund represents that fund's equity share of the District's cash and investment pool. 

Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated quarterly to the various funds based on rnonth-
end balances. Interest income an restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related 
fund. 

The District's investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of equity and debt secarties is determined based 
an sales prices or bid-and-asked quotations from Securities and Exchange Commission {SECS registered securities 
exchanges or NASDAQ dealers. The County Treasurer of San 1-ais  Qbspo County determines the fair value of their 
portfolio quarterly and reports a factor to the District. Changes in fair value are allocated to each participating fund. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District has defined cash and cash equivalents to be change and 
petty cash funds, equity in the District's cash and investment pool, and restricted non-pooled investments with initial 
maturities of three months of less. 

F. Accounts and Interest. Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at fiscal year-.end and not yet 
received. Receivables are recorded in the financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if 
applicable, and estimated refunds due. Major receivable balances far the governmental activities may include sales 
taxes, property taxes, grants, and other fees, if any. Easiness-type activities report utilities as their major receivables.. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds may include revenue accruals such as 
franchise tax, grants, service charges and other similar intergovernmental revenues that are both measurable and 
available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in 
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, bat not deferred in the government-wide f nancial 
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and if 
paid within 00 days since they would be considered both measurable and available, Proprietary fund material 
receivables consist of all revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and 
interest earnings comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables. 

G. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 

Payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in bath 
government-wide and fund financial statements. Payments made to reserve a future capital asset are recorded as a 
deposit until that asset is received. 

H. Restricted Assets 

Funds that are under the control of external parties are restricted. 

Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment aver property, plant, and equipment depends an whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprie#ary fund operations. The presentation and recording of governmental assets 
are described below. 

Government-Wide Statements 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets with a historical cost of $5,000 or more are accounted for 
as capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cos#, or estimated historical cos# if actual is unavailable, 
except for donated capital assets, if any, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNITY SERVICES D~STRIC7 
NOTES TC~ THE  BANC  FiNANC1AL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cc~ntïnued~ 

Capital Assets {Continued} 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the sta#ement of activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' 
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of 
asset is as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Improvements other than buildings 5-25 years 
Equipment and systems 5-3t~ years 

Fund Financial Statements 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital 
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations 
are capitalized when purchased, 

J. Accumulated Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences comprise unused vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory time off, which are accrued 
as earned. Vacation can accrue no more than a maximum of two times the employees' annual entitlement to 
vacation pay. Upon termination, all accumulated vacation hours can be paid for the regular employees. The District's 
liability for the current and long-term portions of compensated absences is shown in the government-wide Statement 
of Net Position for both governmental funds and proprietary funds. CJnly proprietary funds reflect the long-term 
portion ïn the fund financials report, the Statement of Net Position. The short-term portion is reflected for both 
governmental and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements. Computation was based on rates in effect as of 
the fiscal year-end. 

K. Lonq-Term C}bli_ acct ions 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the statement of net position.. In the fund fnancial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of 
debt issued as another financing source, and the proprietary fund types report long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations as liabilities. 

~. Deferred C}utflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to GARB Statement No. 63, Financial Repgrtirrg►  of Deferred t~utflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, and GARB Statement o, ~~, hems Pre~riousl~r Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section far deferred outflows of 
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. The District has two items which qualify for reporting in this category, refer to 
Note 8 and Note 9 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the Distríct has recognized, 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. A deferred inflow of resources ïs defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable 
to a future reporting period. The District has two items which qualify for reporting in this category; refer to Note 8 and 
Note 9 for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the District has recognized. 

M. Interfund Transactions 

Following is a description of the three basic types of interfund transactions that can be made during the fiscal year 
and the related accounting policies: 

1. Interfund services..... provided and used -transactions for services rendered or facilities provided. These 
transactions are recorded as revenues ïn the receiving fund and expenditures in the disbursing fund. 

2. Reimbursements. {expenditure transfers) -transactions to reimburse a fund far specific expenditures incurred for 
the benefit of another fund, These transactions are recorded as expenditures in the disbursing fund and a 
reduction of expenditures in the receiving fund. 

3. Transfers -all interfund transactions which allocate resources from one fund to another fund. These transactions 
are recorded as transfers in and out. 
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SAN MIGIJEL CC}MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NCJTES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 3~, ~~~4 

NOTE 1 --SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contïnued} 

N. Equity. Classifications 

Government-Wide Statements 

GASB Statement No. ~~ requires that the difference between arse#s and the deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. Diet position is classifed as either 
net investment ín capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net position that is net ïnvestment ín capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of the net position that has 
external constraints placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does 
not meet the definition of net investments in capital assets or restricted net position. 

~. Fund Balances 

Fund balance of the governmental fund is classified as follows. 

Nonspendable Fund Balance —represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable 
form {such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact {such as notes receivable or 
principal of a permanent fund). 

Restricted Fund Balance —represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or 
enabling legislation, 

Committed Fund Balance —represents amounts that can only be used for a specïfic purpose because of a formal 
action by the District's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance 
amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are 
typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget, Committed fund balance amounts differ from 
restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, ar 
enabling legislation.. 

Assïgned Fund Balance —represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do not 
meet the criteria to be classïfied as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governïng board or by an 
official or body to which the governïng board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or 
committed in a specïai revenue, capital projects, debt service, or perir~anent fund àre assigned for pürposes in 
accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund 
convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purpose of 
the District. 

Unassigned Fund Balance —represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any purpose. 
Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. {ether governmental funds might report a negative 
balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restrïcted, 
committed or assigned. 

V~hen an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent. f rst. When an expenditure is incurred far which committed, 
assigned, ar unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finaNy unassigned funds, 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Nt~TES T{~ THE BASIC F~NANCiAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 --SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cc~ntïnued) 

P. Future Accounting Pronouncements 

CASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financïal statements: 

Statement  Na.  101 "Compensated Absences" The provisions of this statement are effective 
far fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. 

Statement  Na.  102 "Certain Risk Disclosures" The provisions of thïs statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024. 

Statement No. 103 "Financial Reporting Nladel Improvements" The provisions of this statement are effective far 
fiscal years beginning after June 1 ~, 2025. 

Statement No. 104 "Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets" The provïsions of this statement are effective far 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025. 

Q. Pensïans 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the California Public Employees' Retirement System 
{CAPERS} (Plank and additions toldeductiQns from the Plan's fduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by CALPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee 
contributions} are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 

R. Use of Estimates 

The financial statements have been prepared ïn accordance with principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America and necessarily include amounts based an estimates and assumptions by Management. Actual results 
could differ from these amounts. 

~ ` ~ • ` ! • ~ i ~ ~ ~ s  

For the purposes of measuring the net {)PEB lïability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to C~PEB, 
and OPEB expense, information about the fducary net position of the District's plan (C~PEB Plank and additions 
taldeductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, 
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
repo ied at fair value. 

s ~!~ 

The budget ïs reported an the same basis as the fund types and an a basis consistent wïth accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Additional appropriations ar other changes during the fscal 
year may be submitted by the department for Board revïew and approval. 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Investments are carried at fair value ïn accordance with GASB Statement  Na.  ~2. ~3n June 30, 2024, the District had the 
fallowing cash and investments on hand: 

Cash in checking accounts $ 1,992,454 

Cash in escrow account 119,222 

Cash in savings accounts 2,180,319 

Cash and investments with County of San Luis CJbspo 67,327 
Cash an hand 300 
Investments 1,809,995 

Total $ 6,169,608 

Cash and investments listed above are presented on the accompanying basic financïal s#atements, as follows: 

Gash and investments '~ . 1 ! :.  
Gash in escrow 

Total i► ~ •• •i i 

27 



~AN  MIGUEL  CC}MMUNITY' SER.VI~CE~ DISTRI~T 
N{JTES T~ THE BASiC FIh1ANCIAL STATEMENTS 
J U N E 3ú, 2024 

N~}TE 2— CASH A~ID IIVVESTMENT~ {Continued} 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. These 
principles recognize athree-tiered fair value hïerarchy. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in actïve markets for identical assets; 
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

The District has the following recurring faïr value measurements as of June 0, 2024: 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Quoted Prices in Significant 

Active Markets tither significant 
for Identical C}bservable Unobservable 

Assets Inputs Inputs 
Investments by fair value level {Level 1 } {Level 2} ~ Level 3) 

Negotiable certificate of deposit $ 940, 479 $ 94U, 479 $ - $ - 

U.S. Treasury /Agency Security 8t)3, 988 8U3, 988 

Total investments measured at fair value 1,744,467 $ 1,744,487 $ - $ 

Investments measured at amortized cost 

San Luis C}bispo County Investment Pool 67,327 

Money market funds 65,528 

Totallnvestments $ 1,809,995 

Investments of the District are governed by the California Government Code and by the District's investment policy. The 
General Manager of the District acts as the District Finance (Jfficer and Treasurer who is tasked to perform investment 
functions in accordance with the investment polïcy. The objectives of the policy are safety, liquidity, yield, and compliance with 
State and Federal laws and regulations. 

Investments of the District as of June 3ú, 2024 

The table below identifies the investment types the District has that are authorized for the District by the California Government 
Code or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive, that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration 
of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 
Authorized Maximum Percentage investment 

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None 5% 
U.B. Treasury Qbligations 5 years None None 
Federal Agency Securities 5 years None None 
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 40% None 
Commercial Paper 270 days 25-40% None 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 3U% 5% 
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years $25ú,U00 None 
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 3U% 5% 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 2U°l~ None 
San Luis {~bispo County investment Pool NIA None None 
Local Agency Investment Fund NIA None $75,000,ú0ú 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Rísk 

Interest. rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment is, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Gne 
of the ways that the District's interest rate risk is mitigated is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments and by #iming cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming class to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flaw and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the dïstribution of the District's investments by maturity as of June 30, Zú24: 
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SAN  MIQUEL  GtJMMUNITY SEF~VI~ES D1STRi~T 
NOTES Tt~ THE BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

Nt~TE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS {Continued} 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued' 

Remaining Maturity {in Months} 

+Carrying 12 IVlonths 13-24 25-~~ More than 

Investment Type Amount or Less Months Nbnths 60 Months 

Negotiable certificates of deposit $ 940,479 $ - $ - $ 940,479 $ - 

U.. Treasury 1 Agency Security 803,988 99,633 704,355 

Money market funds 65,528 65,528 

San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 67,327 67,327 

$ ~ ,877,322 $ 132,855 $ - $ ~ ,644,834 $ - 

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitïve to Interest Rate Fluctuations 

The District has no investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. 

Disclosures Relating. to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the rïsk tha# an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This 
ïs measured by the assignment of a rating by natïanally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below ïs the 
minimum rating required by {where applicable} the California Government Code, the investment policy, or debt agreements, 
and the actual rating as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 for each ïnvestment type. 

Minimum 
Carrying Legal Rating as of Fiscal Year End 

Investment Type Amount Rating AAA AA+ AA Not Rated 

Negotiable certificates of deposit $ 940,479 N/A $ - $ - $ - $ 940,479 
U.S. Treasury I Agency Security 803,988 803,988 

Money market funds 05,528 N/A 65,528 
San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 67,327 N/A 57,327 
~ 1 577 ~`~ `~ Q _ Q 4 n'2 (~  i?  4 $ _ $ ~ t177 ~ ~ ,~ 
+}r ~ , r r , Lr,. y, y~ tlVv, CyV 1 ,t1 / .),..7~7~1' 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer {other than U.S Treasury securities, mutual 
funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5°l~ or more of total District investments is as follows; 

Investment Type Reported Amount 

Negotiable certificates of deposit $ 940,479 

Federal agency securities $ 803,988 

Custadïal Credit Rïsk 

Custodial Credït risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 
not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The California Government Code and the District investment policy do not contain legal ar policy requirements that 
would  límit  the exposure to custodial credit risk far deposits or investments, other than the following provision far deposits: The 
California Government Code requires that a financial instïtutíon secure deposits made by Mate or local governmental units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under Mate law (unless so waived by the 
government unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District's deposits by pledging first 
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150°l~ of the secured public deposits. Deposits are insured up to $25C},000 by the 
FDIC. At June 30, 2024, none of the District's deposits with financial institutions in excess of Federal depository insurance 
limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNIi'Y SEF~VICES dISTRiCI` 
NC)TES Tt~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

NC7TE ~ —CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental activities: 
Balance at Balance at 

Capita! assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 76,926 $ - $ - $ 76,926 

Construction in progress 19,129 28,845 47,174 

Total capita! assets not being depreciated $ 96,055 $ 28,045 $ - $ 124,100 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings, structures, and improvements $ 549,866 $ - $ - $ 549,865 

Equipment 1,481,235 1x,911 1,492,146 
Total capita! assets being depreciated 2,031,101 19,911 2,942,912 

Less accumulated depreciation 1, 436,223 66, 776 1, 562, 999 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 594,878 $ (55,865} $ - $ 539,013 

Net capital assets $ 690,933 $ (27,820} $ - $ 663,113 

Business-type activities: 
Balance at Balance at 
July 1, 2023 Additions ~3eletions June 30, 2024 

Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 301,889 $ - $ - $ 301, 889 

Construction in progress 1, 034,174 1, 386, 394 2,420, 568 

Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 1,336,063 $ 1,386,394 $ - $ 2,722,457 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Building and improvements $ 9,045,814 $ - $ - $ 9,045,814 

Plant and equipment 808,334 808,334 

Total capita! assets being depreciated 9,854,148 9,854,148 

Less accumulated depreciation 4,564,246 265,737 4,829,983 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 5,289,902 $ (265,737 $ - $ 5,024,165 

Net capital assets $ 6, 625, 965 $ 1,120, 657 $ - $ 7, 746, 622 

Governmental Activities 

lJnallocated $ 66, 776 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 66,776 

Business-type Activities: 

Water services $ 196,442 

Wastewater services 69,295.. 

Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 265,737 
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SAN  MIGUEL.  C{~MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO TI-~E BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS 
J ll N E 30, 2024 

N{~TE 4 -LUNG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in the District's long-term liabïlities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024; 

Balance at Balance at Current 
~_  _i_  _ w nnnn n _s_~*i~ _ -- - n _ _~. _ t• _ ~ nn rarara • r-ti ~~ _. 

Governmental Activíties; 
Compensated Absences 
Leases payable 
Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation 
Net Pension Liability 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities; 
Compensated Absences 
Note Payable 
Bonds Payable 
Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation 
Net Pension Liability 

Total Business-Type Activities 

$ 7, 601 $ 7, 980 $ 10,105 $ 5, 475 $ 1, 643 
578,140 60, 296 517, 844 52,405 

56, 563 13,122 59, 785 
r~ nnw n nr-7 ran n~n 

599, 595 $ 30, 059 $ 70, 402 $ 659, 352 $ 64, 049 

$ 32, 242 $ 25, 972 $ 
94,552 

1, 024,128 
226,656 52,488 
nnn rnn nr ne^ary 

33, 989 $ 24, 225 $ 7, 268 
45, 513 48, 039 48, 039 
21, 916 1, 002, 212 22, 875 

279,144 
n n ra rar 

$ 1, 580,104 $ 114, 288 $ 102, 418 $ 1, 591, 974 $ 78,182 

NUTS 5 -- NUTE PAYABLE 

In October 1994, the District was ïssued a note payable from the State of California totaling $989,959, payable in semiannual 
payments of $24,485 with an interest rate of 2.955% due April 1, 2025. The note is secured by water revenues. At June 30, 
2024, the principal balance outstanding was $48,039. The required note princïpal and interest payments are as follows; 

For the Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30 princïpal Interest Total 

2025 $ 48,039 $ 1,057 $ 49,105 

Total $ 48,039 $ 1,057 $ 49,105 

NUTS 8 - BUNDS PAYABLE 

2008 Certificate cif Particïpation Bonds 

United States Department of Agriculture Certificate of Participation Bonds were issued on August 1, 2008 totaling $1,250,000, 
payable in semiannual payments, with an interest ra#e of 4.375%, due August 1, 2048. The bonds are secured by water 
revenues. At June 30, 2024, the bonds principal balance outstanding was $1,002,212. The required bond principal and interest 
payments are as shown below: 

For the Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30 principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 22,875 $ 43,345 $ 05,221 

2026 23,875 42,324 65,199 

2027 24,920 41,255 55,175 

2028 25,010 40,142 56,152 

2029 27,148 38,979 65,127 

2030-2034 154,630 175,594 330,224 

2035-2039 191,547 137,869 329,416 

2040-2044 237,279 91,138 328,417 

2045-2049 293,928 33,249 327,177 

Total $ 1,002,212 $ 643,897 $ 1,646,109 
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SAN  MIGUEL  Cf}MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NCJTES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 7 -- LEASES PAYAB~.E 

In July 2020, the District entered into a lease purchase agreement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC for a fire engine for a 
total of $397,070. Annual payments are to be made in the amount of $47,083 through July 2030. Any time over the course of 
the lease, the District may exercise the purchase option based on the value of the fire engine. At the end of the lease 
agreement, the purchase option is $1. In the event of default of the lease, the District must pay all lease payments for that 
fiscal year and the lessor may opt to retake possession of the fire engine. 

The required lease principal and interest payments are as follows; 

For the Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30 Principal interest Total 

2025 ~ 37,587 $ 9,496 $ 47,083 

2026 38,817 8,266 47,083 

2027 40,086 6,997 47,083 

2628 41,397 5,686 47,083 

2029 42,750 4,333 47,083 

2030-2031 89,740 4,425 94,165 

Total $ 290, 377 ~ 39, 203 $ 329, 580 

In April 2022, the District entered into a lease purchase agreement with Dolman Capital Corporation far a modular building to 
be used for a fire station for a total of X274,379. Annual payments are to be made in the amount of X33,576 through April 
2032, In the event of default of the lease, the District must pay all lease payments for that fiscal year and the lessor may apt to 
retake possession of the buildïng. 

The required lease principal and interest payments are as follows: 

For the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2025 24,819 $ 8,757 $ 33,576 

2026 25,774 7,802 33,576 

2027 26,767 6,809 33,576 

2028 27, 797 5, 779 33, 576 

2929 28,867 4,70° 33,576 

2039-2032 93,443 7,286 100,729 

Total $ 227,467 $ 41,142 $ 268,609 

NOTE 8 -- PENSION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descríptians 

All qual~ed permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's Miscellaneous and Safety 
Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the Califarnïa Public 
Employees' Retirement System {CaIPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and District 
resolution. CaIPERS issues publïcly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit 
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found an the CaIPERS' website. 

Benefits Provided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year 
of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced 
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the 
following: the Basic Death Benefi#, the 1959 Survivor Benefit, ar the Pre-Retirement option Settlement. The cost of living 
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement haw. 
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SAN MICIJEL Ct~MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Nt~TES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 0, 2024 

N{JTE 8 — PENIt~N PLANS Continued) 

A. general Information about the Pension Plans Continued) 

The Plans' provisons and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows: 

ltilliscellaneaus ~ afety  

~ - - f ~~ . ~ 

Classic N'~mber 
Hired Prior to 

January 1, 2013 

New IV~m ber Hired New llem ber Hired 
~ n or after ~ n or after 

January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 

11J~nthly benefts, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required em player contribution rates 

~Qntribufïc~ns 

2.0°10 ~~55 2.0°10~~62 

5 years service 5 years service 

monthly far lïfe monthly for life 

50-63 52-67 

1.426% to 2.,41 ~°l~ 1.0% to 2.5% 

8.00%~ 7.~}(~°lo 

16.24% + $18,143 7.75°/a 

2.7°l0 ~~ 57 

5 years service 

manthly for life 
50-57 

2.0% to 2:7% 

13.75% 

13.54°l0 

Section 20814(c} of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requïres that the employer contribution rates far all 
public employers be determined an an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective an the July 1 following notice of a 
change in the rate. Funding contributions far the Plan is determined annually an an actuarïal basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. 
The actuarially determined rate ïs the estimated amount necessary to finance the casts of benefits earned by employees 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determïned rate and the contrïbutian rate of emplayees. Contributions to the pension plan 
fram the District were $70,168 far the Miscellaneous Plan and $14,466 far the Safety Plan far the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2024. 

B. Pension t.iabilities, Pension Expenses, and deferred t~utflowsllnflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2024, the District's net pensian liabilities far its proportionate shares of the net position liability was X304,602. 
The net pensïon liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the fatal pensïan liability used to calculate the net pensian 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 called farveard to June 30, 2.023 using standard update 
procedures. The District's proportion of the net pensïan liability was based an a projection of the District's long-term share of 
contributions to the pensïon plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, actuarially 
determïned. At June 30, 2023, the District's proportion was 0.00000%, which increased by 0,00086°l~ fram June 30, 2022... 

Far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the District recagnized pension expense of $94,677. pensian expense represents 
the change ïn the net pensian liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred 
recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/lass, actuarial assumptions ar method, and plan benefits, At 
June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensian fram 
the fallowing sources: 

Deferred t~utflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 84,634 $ - 
Changes in assumptions 18,390 

Differences between expected and actual experience 15,561 2,414 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

retirement plan investments 49,318 

Adjustment due to differences in proportion 21,520 18,241 

Changes in proportion and differences between District 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 45,446 
$ 234,869 $ 20,655 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamarkized portion of changes to net 
pensian lïability to be recagnïzed in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

$84,634 reported as deferred autflaws of resources related to pensions resulting from District contrïbutions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recagnized as a reduction of the net pensian liabilïty in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. 
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SAN MIUEL C{~MMUIVITY SERVICES D1:5TRI+~T 
N{~TES  TU  THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEN~ENTS 
JUNE 30, 204 

NOTE 8 — PENIQN PLANS {Dontinued} 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred tJutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
Continued} 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in the pension expenses as follows: 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

Amount 
$ 45,410 

31, 869 

50, 886 

1,415 

$ 129, 580 

Actuarfai Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assump#ions: 

Miscellaneous 
Valuation date 
N~asurement Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Inflation 
Projected Salary Increase 
Mortality Rate Table (1 } 
Post Retirement Benefit Increase 

June 30, 2022 
June 30, 2023 
Entry-Age Actuarial Cost Method 

6.90% 
2.30% 
Varies by Entry Age and Service 
Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds 
The lesser of contract COLA or 2.30% until Purchasing Power 
Protection Allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 2,30°l0 
thereafter 

{1 } The mortality table used was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The probabilities are based on the 

2021 CaIPERS' Experience Study for the period from 2001 to 2019. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality 

m
ates include generational mortality improvement using 80°10 of Scale MP-2020 published by the Society of 

t-,ctüaries. For more detàiiS o n this table, please refer to the `'',aIPERS` Experierce SIÜd~% aÏld RelÏiew of A(:tua((al 

Assumptions report from November 2021 that can be found on the Ca1PERS` website. 

Long►-term Expected Rate of Return 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well 
as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated and combined with risk 
estimates, are used to project compound {geometric} returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities 
was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 

New Strategic Real Return 
Asset Class Allocation (a,b} 

Global Equity -cap-weighted 30.0% 4.54°I° 
Global Equity -non-cap-weighted 12.0°l0 3.84°l0 

Private Equity 13.0°l0 7.28°l0 
Treasury 5.0°I° 0.27°fo 
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0°I° 0.50°Io 

Investment Grade Corporations 10.0°I° 1.56% 
High Yield 5.0°Io 2.27°I° 
Emerging Market Debt 5.0°l0 2.48°l0 

Private Debt 5.0°l0 3.57°I° 
Real Assets 15.0°l0 3.21 °lo 
Leverage -5.0°l0 -0.59°!° 

Total 100.0% 

(a} An expected inflation of 2.30% was used for this period. 
{b} Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management Study. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES Tt~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

NOTE 8 -- PENNON PLANS {Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
{Continued) 

Dïscount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilïty for PELF C was 0.90%. The projection of cash flaws used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contrïbu#ion 
rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future bereft payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensïtïvïty of the Praportitanate Share of the Net Pension Liabïlity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liabïlity calculated using the dïscaunt rate of 6.90 
percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calcülated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.90 percent} or 1 percentage point higher (7.90 percent} than the current rate. 

1 °lo Decrease 5.90°l° 

Net Pens Ian Líablïty 487,218 

Current Discount bate 0.90°I° 
Net Persian Liability $ 304,G02 

1 °l° Increase 7.90°Jo 
Net Persian Liability $ 154,293 

Pensïon Plan ~iducïary Net P©sition 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fducíary net poston is available in the separately issued GaIPERS' financïal 
reports. 

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2024, the Distrïct had no amount outstanding far contributïons to the pension plan required for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

NOTE 9 -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description 

Plan administration. The District sponsors hea{thcare coverage under the Gaiifornïa Public Employees Medical and Hospital 
Care Act {"PEMHGA"}, commonly referred to as  PERS  Health. PEMHGA provides health insurance through a variety of Health 
Maintenance Organization {HMG}} and Preferred Provider Organization {PPt~} options. 

Benefits ~rovïded. Active employees are subject to 70% of the premium, up to a X900 cap. The District joïned PEMHGA in 
2001 and is under the unequal method, where the Dïstrict contributes up to a cap equal to 5°l° tïmes the number of years the 
District in PEMHGA, times the active contribution cap, Survivor benefits are available. The District does not contribute dental, 
vision, or life insurance premiums towards retirees. 

Active employees hired before May 1, 2013 may retire at age 55 with 5 years of service. The employer paid benefit is equal to 
70% of the premium, up to a $900 cap. One active employee hired before May 1, 2013 has a special contract with the District 
providing paid benefit up to a cap of $1,400 per month. 

Active employees hired after May 1, 2013 may retire at age 62 with 10 years of service. The employer paid benefit is equal to 
70°l° of the premium, up to a $900 cap, with a vesting schedule ranging from 10 years of service at 50% to 20 years of service 
at 100°10 of benefit. 
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SAN MICàt1EL CC}MMi1NITY SERVICES QISTRICT 
h1~TES T{J THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMEr~TS 
JUNE 3ü, 2024 

Nt~TE 9 -- t~THER PC}ST EMP~.C~YMENT BENEFITS {Continued 

Employees Covered 

As of the June 3ú, 2023 actuarial valuation, the following current and farmer employees were covered by the benefit terms 
under the District's Plan: 

Active plan members 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits d 

Total 8 

The District currently finances benefits on spay-as-you-go basis. 

Total ~PEB .ability 

The District's Total t~PEB liability was measured as of June 3ú, 2023 and the fatal APES liability used to calculate the Total 
C~PEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 3ú, 2423, standard actuarial update procedures were used 
to projectldiscaunt from the valuation date to the measurement date. 

Actuarial assum~tíons. The total QPEB liability was de#ermined using the fallowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Salary increases 3.00°l° 
Inflation rate 2.50% 
medical cost trend rate 6°l° for 2023, 5.5°l° for 2024, 5.25°l° for 2025-2029, 

5°l° for 2030-2039, 4.75% for 2040-2049, 4.50°I° for 
2050-2059, and 4°l° for 2070 and later years! Medicare ages: 4,5°l° 
far 2023-Zú29 and 4°l° for 2030 and Inter years . 

Pre-retirement and past-retirement public agency miscellaneous mortality rates were based on the 2021 CaIPERS' 
Experience Study. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 3ú, 2023 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during the period July 
1, 2021 to June 3ú, 2023. 

The long-term expected rate of return on C~PEB plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in 
sA. hich best-estimate ranges of expected future .real rates of return c"e_x_pected returns, net of investment expense ànd 
inflation} are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weïghting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. To achieve the goal set by the investment policy, plan assets will be managed to earn, on a fang-term 
basis, a rate of return equal to or in excess of the target rate of return of 3.86 percent. 

Discount rate. LASS Statement No. 75 requres a discount rate that reflects the following: 

a~ The long-term expected rate of return on C)PEB plan investments — to the extent that the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position cif any} is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and assets are expected to be 
invested using a strategy to achieve that return; 

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bands with an average rating of AA/Aa or 
higher — to the extent that the conditions in ~a) are not met. 

To determine a resulting single {blended} rate, the amount of the plan's projected fiduciary net position cif any} and the 
amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit payments. The discaun# rate used 
to measure the District's total CJPEB liability is based on these requirements and the following information: 

Municipal 
20 Year High grade 

Reporting Date Measurement Date Rate Index Discount Rate 

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 3.59°l° 3.69°I° 
June 3ú, 2024 June 30, Zú23 3.86°I° 3.36°l° 

Change of assumptions. Far the June 30, 2023 measurement date, the discount rate was increased from 3.69°lo to 3.86%. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
NATES  TC? THE BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2024 

Nt~TE 9 -- t~THER PAST EMPL~}YMENT BENEF'1T~ {Continued) 

Changes in the C)PEB Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2023 
{Valuation Date June 30, 2023} 

Changes recognized for the measurement period: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Difference between expected and actual experien 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net Changes 
Balance at June 30, 2024 
{Measurement Date June 30, 2023} 

~  . !. . . 
~~ 

, . . 
R ~ 

35,448 
11, 698 

t 19, 580 
2, 395 

{3,51 ~} 

Oí5,010 

ti~ . 's • • 

Sensitivity of fhe (JPEB liability to changes in fhe discounf cafe. The fallowing presents the total QPEB liability, as well as what 
the QPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that ïs 1 percentage paint lower {2.80 percent} or 1 
percentage-point higher {4.86 percent} than the current discount rate: 

1 °l~ Decrease Current Pate 1 %increase 
2,.85°/a 3.86% 4.85°fo __ 

QPEB Liability $ 416,183 $ 348,929 295,288 

Sensifvity Qf fhe CPEB liability fv changes in the hea/fhcare freed rates. The following presents the total {QPEB liability, as well 
as what the QPEB liability would be if ït were calculated using a healthcare cast trend rates that are 1 percentage paint lower 
{5.00 percent} or 1 percentage paint higher {7.00 percent} than the current healthcare cast trend rates: 

Current Pate 
5.00°l0 6.00°l0 7.00°I~ 

{Decreasing to {Decreasing to {Decreasing to 
3.00°!~} 4.v0°Ia} 5.00°~̀'1 

C~PEB Liability $ 301,462 $ 348,929 $ 394,977 

QPEB Expense and Deferred t~utflows/Inflows of Resources Related to C)PEB 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized C~PEB expense of $44,757. As of the fscal year ended June 
30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to ~3PEB from the following sources:: 

Deferred {outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Pesources Resources 

(QPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 3,986 $ 
Difference between expected and actual experience 1 ?,721 18,323 
Change in assumptions 77,255 95,828 

$ 98,962 $ 114,151 

The $3,986 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the June 30, 2023 measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the CJPEB liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to QPEB will be recognized as expenses 
as shown on the following page: 
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NOTE ~ — C}THER POST EMPLC3YMENT BENEF~TS {Continued~ 

C~PEB Expense and Deferred Qutflowsllnflows of Resources Related to C)PEB ~Continued~ 

Fiscal year Ending June 3ú, Amount 

$ {~, 389} 
{2, 389j 
{~, ~~~~ 

~ 1, 084} 
{

(

~

`~

, ~~~

' 

} 

~9,840) 
$ ~ 19,175} 

NOTE 1 t~ — EXCESS oF E~PEND~Tl~RES oVER APPROPR~AT1oNS 

Fund Excess Expenditures 

Fire Fund 
Salaries and wages $ 45,139 
Payro!! taxes and benefits 2,472 
Miscellaneous 9,460 
Dues, permits, and fees 212 
Communications 11,387 
Occupancy 3 

NOTE ~1 ~1 — CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

According to the District's staff and attorney, no con#ingent liabilities are outstanding and  na  lawsuits are pending of any real 
financial consequence. 
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SAI~# M#DUEL CON#MUN#TY SERVICES DISTR#CT 
FIDE FUND 
SCHEDULE CAF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal gear Ended June 30, 204 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 

Service charges and fees 
Public facilities fees and assessments 
Mutual aid 
Grant income 

Investment income 

Miscellaneous income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and benefits 
Workers compensation 
Maintenance and repairs 
Miscellaneous 
Insurance 

CJffice supplies and expense 

Supplies 

Professional services 

Dues, permits, and fees 
Communications 
Employee travel and training 

t~ccupancy 

~,,,~tilitiPÇ 

Bank fees 
Capital outlay 
Debt Service: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues 
over {under} expenditures 

Other Financing Sources {Uses): 

Proceeds from sale of property 

Total other financing sources {uses) 

Change n fund balance 

Fund balance -July 1, 2023 

Fund balance -June 30, 2024 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 

Final Budget 
Original Fïnal Actual Amounts Positive (Negative# 

$ 497,467 $ 497,407 $ 530,871 $ 33,404 

7,950 7,950 17,883 9,933 

3,ÚO0 3,000 10,728 13,728 

27,510 27,510 

20,000 20,000 2,592 {17,408) , 

329 329 

1,815 1,815 

528,417 528,417 597,728 69,311 

190,120 204,808 250,007 {45,139) 

33,024 40,319 42,791 {2,472) 

35,000 29,429 29,429 

48,400 42,997 23,790 19,207 

4,500 0,150 15,610 {9,450} 

16, 000 20,175 20,175 

7,800 7,800 2,401 5,399 

76,500 73,143 58,855 14,288 

47,000 50,500 47,658 2,842 

8,500 8,654 8,8601 {212} 

30, 000 26, 000 37, 387 { 11, 387) 

10, 500 10,500 8,174 2,326 

6,760 6,760 0,793 {33) 

9,800 10,700 4,124 V,~7~, 

1 {1) 

339,603 153,870 38,956 114,914 

60,381 60,381 60,296 85 

20,389 20,389 20,364 25 

944,277 772,635 675,077 90,958 

{415,860} {244,218} {77,949} 166,209 

5,625 5,625 

5,625 5,625 

{415,860} {244,218} {72,324} 171,894 

1,276,716 1,276,716 1,276,716 

$ 860,856 $ 1,032,498 $ 1,204,392 $ 171,894 
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SAN  MIGUEL  CC)MMUNITY  SERVIES  DISTRICT 
STREET LIGHTIN+~ Fl1h1D 
SCHEDULE of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHAN{jES IN FU~iD BALAIUCE 
BUDGET AID  ANUAL  
FQr the Fiscal bear Ended June 30, 2024 

Revenues: 

Property taxes 

Service charges and fees 

Investment income 

Miscellaneous ïncome 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Salaries and wages 

Payroll taxes and benefits 

Workers compensation 

Maintenance and repaïrs 

Miscellaneous 

Insurance 

office supplies and expense 

Supplies 

ProfeSS~onal services 

hues, permits, and fees 

Communications 

Employee travel and trainïng 

occupancy 

Utilities 

Sank fees 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues 

over {under) expenditures 

Fund balance -July 1, 2023 

Fund balance -June 30, 2024 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 

Final Budget 

Qriginal Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative} 

$ 154,503 $ 154,663 $ 162,987 $ 8,324 

23 23 

8,580 31,400 22,820 

5,438 5,784 346 

154,653 168,681 200,194 31,513 

17,009 17,309 14,975 2,334 

3,590 4,419 3,792 627 

100 {15) 15 

23,150 23, 050 1, 526 21, 524 

50 50 50 

3,400 2,100 2,013 87 

950 1, 050 346 704 

6,300 6,300 4 6,296 

47,500 49,600 4,734 44,856 

1,600 1,600 334 1,266 

2,725 3,158 2,138 1,020 

2,550 2,550 57 2,593 

1,200 1,950 1,423 527 

35,500 35,500 24,663 10,837 

50 55 {1 } 55 

34,000 

179,974 148,791 55,989 92,802 

(25,311) 19,890 144,205 124,315 

795,749 796,749 795,749 

$ 771,438 $ 816,639 $ 940,954 $ 124,315 
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~►AN MI~UEL CJMMtJN~TY SEl~1l~CES DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE CAF CHANCES IN THE CJPEB LlAB1LITY AND RELATED RATI(JS 
Last 10 Years* 
As of J u  ne  30, 2024 

Total QPEB Liability 
Service cost 
Interest on the total QPEB liability 
Actual and expected experience difference 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total QPEB Liability 

Total ©PEB liability -beginning 
Total QPEB Liabïlity -ending 

Covered payroll: 

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered payroll: 

Total QPEB Liabïlity 
Service cost 
Interest on the total QPEB liability 
Actual and expected experience difference 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total ©PEB Liabïlity 

Total QPEB liability -beginning 
Total C}PEB liabïlïty -ending 

Covered payróll: 

Total QPEB Liabïlity as a percentage of covered payroll: 

2024 2023 2022 2021 

$ 35,448 $ 54,297 $ 40,020 $ 40,592 

11,698 7,478 6,556 6,217 

19,586 (1,658} 
2,395 (111,895} 66,470 26,617 

{3,517} {3,480} {4,063} {3,681 } 

65,610 {53,600} 107,325 69,745 

283,319 336,919 229,594 159,849 
$ 348,929 $ 283,319 $ 336,919 $ 229,594 

$ 767,809 $ 639,482 $ 500,343 $ 346,086 

45.44°10 44.30°l° 67.34°I° 66.34% 

2020 2019 2018 

$ 36,290 $ 13,857 $ 13,453 
6,132 4,091 3,674 

(29,504} {11,745} 
15,099 
{2,525} (5,049} {2,562} 
25,492 1,154 14,565 

134,357 133,203 118,638 
$ 159,849 $ 134,357 $ 133,203 

$ 354,500 $ 375,473 $ 344,324 

45.09°!° 35.78°l° 38.69°fo 

Notes to Schedule: 

The discount rate was changed from 3.69% to 3.86% for the June 30, 2023 measurement date. 

*- Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 
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SAN  MIGUEL  Ct~MMUNlTY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SC~EDIJLE CAF C~PEB Ct~NTRIBUTIC~NS 
Last 10 Years` 
As of June 30, 2024 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 was $3,086. The District did no# have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ended June 0, 2024, therefore the District does not need to 
comply with ~ASB Statement  Na.  75's Required Supplementary lnformatïon requirements. 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 was X3,517. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Gontributïon for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, therefare the District does not need to 
comply with G~ASB Statement No. 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was $3,582. The District did not have an actuary caiculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, therefore the District does not need to 
comply with ~ASB Statement No, 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was $2,910. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, therefore the District does not need to 
comply with GASB Statement  Na,  75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was $2,438. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Gontributïon for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, therefare the District does not need to 
comply with GASB Statement No. 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

The District's contribution far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,588, The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially D

,/+~
etermined Contribution far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, therefore the District does not need to 

.. w!y a ; ~++ ~ASl.J ~~ ~ r,r, t1# A~.~. ?C~r. D IY1 fir ~ 1 1ppÍ ._ W1 !'1t+'~YtY 1Y1~111'!^Y1+!~~`1f1Y1 1^L!~! !I!'MY'tY1Tç` cVm l v'ir'rt! 1 ~.à later 1 ~e~ ~i 1 v, t ~ ~ I ~e~.~uli eu ~a ~e~ ~ ~e~ ! ~1 J  I II Vt  i  ï 1G1t1~11 ! Iii t.1ià ~ ~ 1 1 ~~v. 

The District's contribution far the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was $3,904. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, therefore the District does not need to 
comply with GASB Statement No. 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

*- Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 
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SAN  MIGUEL.  CC}MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SCHEaULE OF PRC~P4RT1(JNATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
Last 1 ~ Years 
As of June 30, 2024 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan. 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00208°l0 0.00225°I° 0.00225% 0.00204% 0.00200% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liabilïty $ 259,817 $ 259,817 $ 121,854 $ 221,520 $ 205,120 

Covered payroll $ 573,388 $ 508,988 $ 510,668 500,343 $ 354,500 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 45.3°f° 51.0°!° 23.9% 44.3°fo 57.9% 

Plan's total pension liability $ 52,441,984,274 $ 49,525,975,138 $ 46,174,942,264 $ 43,702,930,887 $ 41,426,453,489 

Plan's fiduciary net position $ 39,966,633,692 $ 37,975,170,163 $ 40,766,653,876 $ 32,822,501,335 $ 31,179,414,067 

Plan fduciary net pastion as a percentage of the 
total pension liabïlty 76.21 % 76.68% 88.29%4 75.10°/a 75.26°1° 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00196% 0.00191 °1° 0.00200°1° 0.00211 % 0.00201 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 188,568 $ 189,718 $ 173,264 $ 145,045 $ 125,163 

Covered payroll $ 274,239 $ 190,663 $ 140,038 $ 174,026 $ 205,120 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 68.8% 99.5% 123.7°!~ $3.3% 61.0% 

Plan's total pension liability $ 38,944,855,364 $ 37,161,348,332 $ 33,358,627,624 $ 31,771,217,402 $ 30,829,966,631 

n .,.,~~ ,a..,.c..... ~,.s ...,,..sic ., rl,ai s ~ fiuut,ica ~ y r~ci Nva~u~ii  i  Q ~~ ~znQ ~$9 ~~~ ,p ~ ,JVV,~! ,.✓.,r.J ~ ~7 ~4~ nc~~ ~~~ w ~~ ,~ -r,v +,► ,..1r u ~ ~fi ~nF ~~~ ~~~ w ,~-r,, v,a,vv ,~.r  i  $ ~~ ~n~ ~nF s~~1 L~,.rv, ,uvv,vr ~ ~ ~4 ~n~ ~n~ 5~ ~ y+ ~ ,vv, ,vv<, ~., 

Plan fiducïary net positïon as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 75.26°I° 73.31 % 74.06% 

Notes to Schedule:. 

In the reporting fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90°1° and price inflation was 
reduced from 2.50°1° to 2.30%. 

7$.40% 79.$2% 

43 



SAN MIiGUEL COMMUNITY SEF2VICE DITRI~T 
SCHEDULE (JF PENSIC}N CONTR1BUTit~NS 
Fast ~ 0 dears 
As of June 30, 2024 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan.. 

Zaz~ ~~~~ Zo~2 Zo~~ za2o 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} $ 84,834 $ 79,877 $ 74,225 $ 52,323 $ 54,288 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 84,634 79,577 74,225 52,323 54,258 
Contribution deficiency {excess} $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Covered payroll $ 661,856 $ 573,388 $ 508,988 $ 510,668 $ 500,343 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 12.79°I© 13.90% 14.58% 12.20% 10.85% 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2415 

Contractually requïred contribution {actuarially determined} $ 58,116 $ 28,201 $ 22,800 19,438 $ 26,154 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributïons 58,116 28,201 22,800 19,438 26,154 
Contribution deficiency {excess} $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Covered payroll $ 354,500 $ 274,239 $ 190,663 $ 140,038 $ 174,025 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.39°!° 10.28°I° 11.96% 13,88% 15.03°I° 

Notes to Schedule: 

there were no changes to assumptions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 
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2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205  Santa Maria, CA 93455   Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147   mlhcpas.com 
 

BEVERLY HILLS ∙ CULVER CITY ∙ SANTA MARIA 

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP
Certified Public Accountants

           

 

December 6, 2024 

To the Board of Directors of the  
San Miguel Community Services District 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the San Miguel Community Services District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted 
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated December 6, 
2024. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our 
audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the San Miguel Community Services District are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the fiscal year for which there 
is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial statements were: 

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on experience with other 
capital assets and on their standard table of useful lives. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the useful lives of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the allowance for bad debt is based on their past experience with the 
Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows related to 
pension are based on the CalPERS actuary’s expertise experience.  We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows 
related to pension in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability and deferred 
inflows and outflows related to OPEB are based on the actuary’s expertise and experience.  We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net OPEB liability and deferred 
inflows and outflows related to OPEB in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 

The disclosure of the Long-term Liabilities in Note 4. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 



 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of 
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each 
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 6, 2024.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries 
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the San Miguel 
Community Services District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

Santa Maria, California 



Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP
Certified Public Accountants  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Board of Directors 
San Miguel Community Services District 
San Miguel, California 
           

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, and the business-type activities and each major fund of San 
Miguel Community Services District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 6, 2024. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered District’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings that we consider to be significant deficiencies.  We consider the deficiency 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be a significant deficiency (Finding 2024-001).   

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether District’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

San Miguel Community Services District’s Responses to Findings 

The San Miguel Community Services District’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses.  The San Miguel Community Services District’s responses were not subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
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BEVERLY HILLS ∙ CULVER CITY ∙ SANTA MARIA 

 



 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Santa Maria, California 
December 6, 2024 
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San Miguel Community Services District 
Schedule of Findings and Responses  
June 30, 2024 
 

FINDING 2024-001 
PAYROLL 

 

Criteria: 
All employees should be paid according to an approved contract or personnel action form that clearly states their position and rate of pay.  This 
rate of pay should match to the Board approved Salary Schedule. 
 
Condition: 
During testing of twenty-five payroll transactions, we noted one Fire employee who did not have a contract or personnel action form on file.  
 
Cause:   
Management oversight. 
 
Effect: 
Potential for misappropriation of assets for pay that does not appropriately match the employee’s position and pay rate. 
 
Recommendation: 
All employees should be paid according to a signed and approved contract or personnel action form that clearly states their position and rate of 
pay.  This rate of pay should be matched to the Board approved Salary Schedule.  Internal controls should require a new contract or personnel 
action form for each new employee and for any changes to position or pay rate other than an organization-wide COLA increase.  Periodically, 
employee files should be reviewed to ensure all required current documentation is present and retained in the files. 
 
Repeat Finding: 
No. 
 
District Corrective Action Plan:  
Fire Department New Hire Packets will be revised to include a Pay Range sheet indicating the new employee’s rates for the work 
that they may perform for the Fire Department. Future Fire Department personnel position, or compensation, changes will be 
documented through the use of approved personnel forms. 
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San Miguel Community Services District 
Schedule of Prior Fiscal Year Findings and Responses  
June 30, 2024 
 

FINDING 2023-001 
PAYROLL 

 

Criteria: 
All employees eligible to receive vacation pay should be accruing vacation and sick leave based on their employee agreement. 
 
Condition: 
During testing of twenty-five payroll transactions, we noted one employee’s timecard was not signed in approval by their supervisor. In another 
instance we noted that one employee was paid an incorrect rate for an hour of vacation time used.  
 
Cause:   
Review of timecards and payroll should be documented and ensure accuracy. 
 
Effect: 
Potential for misappropriation of assets for pay that does not appropriately match hours worked or vacation used.  One employee was 
erroneously underpaid by slightly over $17. 
 
Recommendation: 
All timecards should be reviewed and signed in approval by the employee’s supervisor in order to ensure that hours worked are accurate and 
that the review and approval is documented.  All payroll runs should be reviewed to check and ensure that pay rates are accurate. 
 
Repeat Finding: 
No. 
 
Current Status: 

Implemented. 
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